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THOMPSON

SCHOOL DISTRICT Business Services
800 South Taft Avenue e Loveland, CO 80537 ¢ Office (970) 613-5051 ® Fax (970) 613-5085 Luke Gonzales
Manager of Accounting

& Reporting

To the Board of Education, Parents, Taxpayers, and Members of The Thompson School District R2-J, Loveland
and Berthoud, Colorado:

We are pleased to submit to you the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of Thompson School District R2-J
for the year ended June 30, 2009.

State law requires that the District publish within six months of the close of each fiscal year a complete set of financial
statements presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (US
GAAP) and audited in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US
GAAS), by a firm of licensed certified public accountants. Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue the

comprehensive annual financial report of the Thompson School District R2-J (District) for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2009.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the District. Consequently, management
assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To
provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the District has established a comprehensive
internal control framework that is designed both to protect the District’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile
sufficient reliable information for the presentation of the District’s financial statements in conformity with US GAAP.
Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the District’s comprehensive framework of
internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements will
be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial
report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The District’s financial stateroents have been audited by Swanhorst & Company LLC, a firm of licensed certified public
accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statemeuts of the
District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an
unqualified opinion that the District’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, are fairly presented in
conformity with US GAAP. The independent auditors’ report is presented as the first component of the financial section
of this report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the District was part of a broader, federally mandated “Single Audit”
designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements
require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the
audited District’s internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and
legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These reports are available in the District’s separately
issued Single Audit Report.




US GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic
financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is
designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.

Profile of the Government

The District, reorganized in 1960, now comprised of 30 schools: five high schools, five middle schools, and nineteen
elementary schools. During 2006-07 the District added its’ first charter school. All of the schools are located in the City
of Loveland, City of Fort Collins or the Town of Berthoud in Northern Colorado. The geographic area of the District is
362 square miles located mainly in southern Larimer County. Student enrollment has steadily increased over the past two
decades; the enrollment was 14,393 students for the 2008-09 school year. The District’s Board of Education is
empowered to levy a property tax on both real and personal properties located within its boundaries.

The District is the reporting entity for financial reporting purposes and is not included in any other governmental reporting
entity. The financial statements of the District include all funds that are controlled by the publicly elected Board of
Education. The Board of Education adopts the budget, authorizes expenditures, selects management, significantly
influences operations, and is primarily accountable for fiscal matters.

The annual budget serves as the foundation of the District’s financial planning and control. The District maintains
extensive budgetary controls, to ensure compliance with legal requirements, Board of Education policies and District
administration guidelines. The legal level of budgetary control is the fund level. The District’s budget must be adopted
by June 30 prior to the budget year, but may be revised for any reason prior to October 15 of the budget year. Budgets are
developed and monitored for compensation costs, utilities and other fixed costs at the District level, and for discretionary
(site based) spending at the department or school level.

Staffing levels are authorized for each site and are tracked monthly to insure usage within budgeted limits. On-line
budget inquiry access plus monthly reports are provided to each site’s administrative staff, to allow monitoring of their
discretionary budgets.

Budgetary control is also maintained through the use of an encumbrance accounting system. Encumbrances outstanding
at year-end lapse, but are generally reappropriated as part of the following year’s budget. Unspent discretionary budgets
at year-end are also reappropriated for each school or department in the following budget year, thereby; fostering
responsible spending and allowing site management to develop longer range spending plans. Schools’ discretionary
budgets also include a share of revenues generated from building rentals, and budgets contingent upon site management’s
compliance with District accountability policies. Under state law, each school is required to involve each employee
group, the Board of Education, and the District Accountability Committee in the budget development process.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered from a broader
perspective of the specific environment within which the District operates.

Local economy. The District has been negatively impacted by the loss of technology jobs in the past several
years. In addition, the current national and statewide recession has had a predictable impact on the local area as
well. Local healthcare and retail sales opportunities remain the likely growth leaders once economic recovery
begins.

il



State Funding. Because the General Fund revenues for public schools in Colorado are almost entirely
determined by the School Finance Act, total revenues will normally not fluctuate significantly.

School districts are also subject to the provisions of an amendment to Article X, Section 20 of the State
Constitution called the TABOR Amendment (Taxpayers Bill of Rights), which limits increases in governmental
revenues, taxes and spending.

Under the TABOR Amendment, school districts” annual increases to revenues or spending over the prior year
are limited to the combined increase in student enroliment and inflation (measured by Denver/Boulder
consumer price index). These limits apply to the combined funds of the District except those specifically
exciuded within the law, such as voter approved bond 1ssues and tax increases. In November 2000, voter
approval was given to the District to remove the restriction on growth in revenue effective for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2000 and beyond.

In November 2000, voters approved an amendment to the State Constitution intended to establish minimum
funding levels for public schools for 2001-2002 through 2010-2011. Known as Amendment 23, this mandate
established a state level financial reserve intended to pay for K-12 funding growth of inflation plus 1% annually
for the 10 year time period.

Beginning in 0809 however, a significant state and national economic downturn has negatively impacted school
funding in Colorado irregardless of this amendment.

During 0809, the state adjusted per pupil revenues downward late in the year to help balance the state budget.
The district lost almost $500,000 (.5%) in expected revenues for the year as a result. The permanent reduction
lowered the floor from which 0910 increases would be calculated as well.

For 0910, the state legislature remained true to Amendment 23 by increasing per pupil revenues used in the
financing formula by inflation plus 1%, but then instituted an emergency reserve requirement on districts that
effectively prevented spending on approximately 40% of the funding increase. At the present time expectations
are that the state will require these emergency reserve dollars ($1.9 million for Thompson) to be returned to the
state.

The governor’s office has also indicated that 10/11 per pupil funding will be reduced by 4.6% as a part of
statewide budget balancing efforts. Another 1.5% reduction is in order to fund a forecasted statewide increase in

enrollment. The reductions will decrease district revenues almost $6.1 million and reduce per pupil funding
below 0809 levels.

Cash management policies and practices. The District’s policy is to invest public funds in a manner which
will provide the highest investment return with the maximum security, while meeting the cash flow demands of
the District and conforming to all federal, state, and local statutes governing the investment of public funds.
Accordingly, temporarily idle cash is invested during the year in the Colorado Government Liquid Assets Trust
(ColoTrust), a-AAA rated investment pool.

Indicative of the significant national economic distress of the times, the District in 0809, along with many other
government entities statewide, suffered a rare principal loss on investments made with Colorado Diversified
Trust.

iit



While District expenditures tend to be fairly consistent throughout the year, its revenue collections cycle reflects
that of local property taxes. The result is that most collections take place during the latter part of the fiscal year.
An interest free state loan program is available to help districts balance cash flow needs but Thompson has not
needed to utilize the program for several years because of sufficient internal reserves.

Risk Management. The District utilizes an internal service fund, the Insurance Reserve Fund, to account for risk
management costs such as property and liability insurance, legal claims, and workers compensation premiums. Revenues
are allocations from the General Fund, as mandated by state law. The District is insured for property and liability claims
through participation in a self-insurance pool with other school districts.

The District’s share of pool premiums is determined using experience modifiers based on exposure information and
actuarial modifiers based on utilization. The percentage contribution from each member district causes yearly changes
based on these factors. The District benefits from the experience rating in the liability and property pools. Retention and
excess costs amounts for 2009 are shown below for the Colorado Self Insurance Pool (CSDSIP):

Pool/District
Self-Insured CSDSIP
Retention*
Property Pool $2,000,000/$5,000 $750,000,000
Liability Pool $600,000/$10,000 ** N/A

* Shown on a per claim or incident basis

** Colorado’s Governmental Immunity Act, limits the types of clairos that can be brought against a school district
(i.e. claims involving operation of a motor vehicle and claims arising because of a dangerous condition of any
public building) and the amount of monetary damages that a school district might be ordered to pay. The
immunity act places a cap on the amount of damages that can be awarded against a public entity or employee.
The maximum amount that can be recovered for an injury involving one person in any single occurrence is

$150,000. The Maximum amount that is recoverable for a singe occurrence involving two or more people is
$600,000.

Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits

The District coutributes to the School Division Trust Fund (SDTF), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan administered by the Public Employees’ Retirement Association of Colorado (PERA). SDTF provides
retirement and disability, annual increases and death benefits for members or their beneficiaries. All employees of the
District are members of the SDTF. Title 24, Article 51 of the Colorado Revised Statutes (CRS), as amended, assigns the
authority to establish benefit provisions to the State Legislature.

The District also contributes to the Health Care Trust Fund (HCTF), a cost-sharing multiple-employer postemployment
healthcare plan administered by PERA. The HCTF provides a health care premium subsidy to PERA participating benefit
recipients and their eligible beneficiaries. Title 24, Article 51, Part 12 of the CRS, as amended, assigns the authority to
establish the HCTF benefit provisions to the State Legislature.

The (SDTF) members of the District may voluntarily contribute to the Voluntary Investment Program (401(k) Plan), an
Internal Revenue Code Section 401(k) defined contribution plan administered by PERA. Plan participation is voluntary,
and contributions are separate from others made to PERA. Title 24, Article 51, Part 14 of the CRS, as amended, assigns
the authority to establish the 401(k) Plan provisions to the State Legislature.

v



Additional information on the District’s penston arrangements and post-employment benefits can
be found in the Notes to Financial Statements section of this report,

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association’s (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement
for Excellence in Financia! Reporting to the District for its comprehensive annual financial report
(CAFER) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. This was the twentieth consecutive year that the
govemment has received this prestigious award. The District also received the Association of
School Business Officials International (ASBO) Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting
award. This was the eleventh consecutive year that the District has received this award. In order
to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the District published an easily readable and
efficiently organized CAFR. This report satisfied both US GAAP and applicable legal
requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Programs’ requirements and we are
submitting it to the GFOA and ASBO to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The preparation and completion of this report could not have been accomplished without the
direct and indirect contributions of the entire Financial Services Staff. Appreciation and
recognition is also extended to our independent audit firm, Swanhorst & Company LLC, and its
professional audit staff for all the assistance and advice they provide throughout the year.

We would also like to thank the Board of Education for their unfailing support for maintaining
the highest standards and professionalism in the management of the District’s finances.

Respectfully submitted, .

'7 7 . - . (. /'/’
LKovadl .d, e Sea \5::%/&?/} A [,.f’(_/}g@a,,
Dr. Ronald G. Cabrera Stepheﬁ Towne
Superintendent of Schools Chief Financial Officer

Luke Gonzales

Manager of Accountif;_&gporting
_mi"j ——_,a(i;_ s ,{‘/‘)'12:; /c”‘ a4/

7



Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

Thompson School District R2-J
Colorado

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2008

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.

President

G« B

Executive Director
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Board of Education

Bill McCreary, President Term Expires 2009
Marcia Venzke, Vice President Term Expires 2009
Lola Johnson, Treasurer Term Expires 2011
Lucille Steiner, Secretary Term Expires 2011
Don Abbott Term Expires 2011
Dennis Breitbarth Term Expires 2009
Karen Stockley Term Expires 2011

Superintendent’s Executive Staff

Dr. Ronald G. Cabrera Superintendent

Mike Jones Assistant Superintendent, HR/School Support
Lynn Langton Executive Director, Student Achievement
Luis Martinez Executive Director, Human Resources

Steve Towne Chief Financial Officer
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FINANCIAL SECTION

The Financial section may be viewed as a “reporting pyramid.” The financial statements and
schedules are presented only as far down the reporting pyramid (in terms of increasing levels of
detail) as necessary to (1) report fairly financial position and operating results; (2) demonstrate
legal compliance; and (3) assure adequate disclosure.

The levels of the pyramid are:

Financial Section

Management’s Discussion and Analysis:
The Management’s Discussion and Analysis provides a narrative introduction, overview, and
analysis of the basic financial statements.

Independent Auditors’ Report:

This is the opinion of the Independent Certified Public Accountants, Swanhorst & Company
LLC, on the information in the financial section. This audit is to determine that information is
fairly presented, complete and in conformance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (US GAAP).

Basic Financial Statements

These statements provide an overview of the financial position of the District as a whole,
focusing on major funds instead of fund types and groups. They also serve as an introduction to
the more detailed statements and schedules that follow. The notes to the financial statements are
an integral part of the basic financial statements and contain the “Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies” and other notes necessary for adequate disclosure.

Required Supplemental Information
These statements include budgetary data for the General Fund and Major Special Revenue Funds.

Combining of Non-major Funds and Individual Fund Statements

These statements and schedules present information on the individual funds where (a) there is
only one fund of a specific type, or (b) sufficient detail to assure adequate disclosure is not
presented in the basic statements. These statements and schedules are also used to present certain
budgetary data.



* Swanhorst & Company LLC

Board of Education
Thompson School District R2-J
Lovejand, Colorado

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate discretely presented component units and remaining fund information of the Thompson
School District R2-J as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements
of the Thompson School District R2-1, as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Thompson School District R2-J’s management. Our respoosibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements based on our audit. We did not auditthe financial statements of the New Vision Charter School, which represent
86 percent and 89 percent, respectively, of the assets and revenues of the discretely presented component units. Those
financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us. and our opinion, insofar
as it relates to amounts inctuded for the New Vision Charter School, is based solely upon the report of other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements arc free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evalualing the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of the other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

[n our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate discretely presented component units and remaining fund information of the Thompson
School District R2-J as of June 30, 2009, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable,
for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The management’s discussion and analysis and required supplementary information listed in the table of contents are not
a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of ineasurement and presentation of the supplementary information. However, we did
not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standurds, we have also issued our report dated December 18, 2009, on our
consideration of the Thompson School District R2-J’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of ils
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in
assessing the results of our audit.

8400 E. Crescent Parkway = Suite 600 « Greenwood Village, CO 80111 » (720) 528-4306 Fax: (720) 528-4307
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Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
Thompson School District R2-J’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund financial statements and
schedules listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opimion, is fairly stated in all waterial respects in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

December 18, 2009



Thompson School District R2-J
Management’s Discussion & Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

As management of the Thompson School District R2-J, we offer readers of the District’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the District for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here
in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal and
financial statements, which immediately follow this section.

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for 2009 are as follows:

e In total, net assets increased by $6,066,540 for the year ended June 30, 2009.
The net increase was composed of the following elements:

Invested in Capital Assets, net of Related Debt $ 3,457,906
Restricted for:
Debt Services 145,136
TABOR 263,955
Other Purposes 229,090
Unrestricted 1,970,453
Net Increase $ 6,066,540

The amount “invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt” increased as a result
of several construction projects the District is completing with funds from the
2005 Bond issuance. Net assets restricted for Debt Service increased due to the
increase in deferred revenue in the Bond Redemption Fund. The Colorado
Revised Statute Article X, Section 20 (Taxpayer Bill of Rights (TABOR))
requires the district to establish reserves for this Amendment. The increase is
due to the calculation factors. Net assets restricted for other purposes increased
due to the net change in the Land Reserve fund balance. The Unrestricted Net
Assets increased overall as a result of the change in fund balance for the General
Fund resulting from better than budgeted performance.

o Total assets of governmental activities decreased by $520,744 attributed to the
following elements:

Increase
(Decrease)
Cash $ (17,840,607)
Receivables 970,550
Due from Other Governments (565,905)
Bond Issuance Costs (100,864)
Capital Assets, net of Accumulated Depreciation 17,016,082
Net Decrease § (520,744
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The decrease in cash was due to the spending of Bond dollars for construction
projects. The increase in receivables was primarily due to the increase in the
year-end property tax receivable. The decrease in Due from Other Governments
was from federal grants such as Title [ Tmprovements, and Special Education
grants. Receipt of funds was timelier than in prior year. Capital assets increased
as a result of building projects funded by the 2005 Bonds. Highlights of the
spending include the additions to Berthoud High School and Mountain View
High School, the full renovation of Ferguson High School being completed.
Along with the in-process projects of the new Transportation facility, the Early
Childhood Center at Monroe Elementary, the Van Buren Special Education
building and the new Ponderosa Elementary School.

Total assets of business type activities increased by $227,997 attributed to the
following elements:

Increase
(Decrease)
Cash 3 23,122
Due from Other Governments 14,649
Inventory (17,695)
Capital Assets, net of Accumulated Depreciation 207,921
Net Increase $ 227,997

The most significant increase was Capital Assets, net of Accumulated
Depreciation as assets added exceeded depreciation expense. Due from other
Governments increased due to the timing of reimbursements for the Food Service
program. The most significant decrease was in Inventory due to the normal
operations of the Nutritional Services Fund. Cash increased due the Nutrition
Services program improved operating results.

Total Liabilities of governmental activities decreased by $6,368,822 due to the
following items:

Increase
(Decrease)

Accounts Payable $ (1,308,922)
Payroll Withholding Payable (213,910)
Accrued Salaries and Benefits 435,179
Retainage Payable 422,535
Accrued Interest Payable 232,886
Due to Other Governments 122,020
Liabilities due within one year 13,590
Liabilities due in more than one year (6,072,200)

Net Decrease $ (6,368,822)

Accounts payable decreased due to the lesser amount of large bond retated
construction projects in-process as compared to the prior year. Accrued Salaries
and Benefits increased as result of a broader application of the accrual.
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¢ The short-term and long-term debt changes of significance are due to fluctuations
in the annual debt payment schedules. Other changes in liabilities are minimal
variations expected during the course of business.

o Total liabilities for business type activities increased by $9,536. An increase in
the accounts payable and unearned revenue of $3,347 and $8,742, respectively
makes up the majority of the change.

¢ (Governmental-activities general revenues accounted for $122.1 million in
revenue or 90 percent of all revenues. Program specific revenues in the form of
charges for services, grants and contributious, accounted for $14.2 million or 10
percent of total revenues of $136.0 million.

¢ The District had $130.4 million in expenses related to governmental activities;
only §14.2 million of these expenses were offset by program specific charges for
services, grants and contributions. General revenues (primarily state equalization
and property taxes) of $122.1 million were adequate to provide for these
programs.

* Among major funds, the general fund had $113.5 million in revenues and $112.7
million in expenditures and transfers out. The general fund’s fund balance
increased to $24.1 million from $23.3 million.

e Net assets for Enterprise funds increased over last year as a result of significant
decrease in expenses during the year, while pricing to the fund’s customers went
up slightly as a result of the board authorized price increases effective for the
2008-09 school year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of five parts: jntroduction, management’s discussion and analysis, the
basic financial statements, supplementary information and a statistical section. The basic
financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the District.

o The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide
both short-term and long-term information about the District’s overali financial
status.

s The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual
parts of the District, reporting the District’s operations in more detail than the
government-wide statements.

o The governmental funds statements tell how basic services such as instruction
were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending.

e Proprietary funds statements offer short and long-term financial information
about the activities the District operates like businesses, such as Nutritional

Services.
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e Fiduciary funds statements provide information about the financial relationships
in which the District acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements
and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required
supplemental information that further explains and supports the financial statements with a
comparison to the District’s budget for the year.

Government-wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using
accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net
assets includes all of the District’s assets and liabilities. All of the current year’s revenues and
expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or
paid.

The two government-wide statements report the District’s nef assets and how they have changed.
Net assets — the difference between the District’s assets and liabilities — are one way to measure
the District’s financial health or position.

¢ Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s net assets are an indicator of
whether its financial position is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

o To assess the District’s overall health, one needs to consider additional
nonfinancial factors such as changes in the District’s property tax base and the
condition of school buildings and other facilities.

In the government-wide financial statements, the District’s activities are divided into two
categories:

e Governmental activities: Most of the District’s basic services are included here,
such as instruction, transportation, maintenance and operations, and
administration. The School Finance Act of 1994, as amended, made up of
property taxes and state equalization, finances most of these activities.

e Business-type activities. The District charges fees to help cover the costs of
certain services it provides. The District’s Nutritional Services program is
included here.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District’s funds,
focusing on its most significant or “major” funds — not the District as a whole. Funds are
accounting devices the District uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending on
particular programs:

s Some funds are required by state law and by bond covenants.
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e The District establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular
purposes (such as repaying its long-term debts) or to show that it is properly
using certain revenues (such as federal grants).

The District has three kinds of funds:

o Governmental jfunds: Most of the District’s basic services are included in
governmental funds, which generally focus on (1) how cash and other financial
assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the balances
left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental
funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps you determine
whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near
future to finance the District’s programs. Because this information does not
encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements,
additional information at the bottom of the governmental funds statements
explains the relationship (or differences) between them.

e  Proprietary funds: Services for which the District charges a fee are generally
reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way as
the government-wide statements. The District’s enterprise funds (one type of
proprietary fund) are the same as its business-type activities but provide more
detail and additional information such as cash flows.

o Fiduciary funds: The District is the agent, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to
others, such as the education memorial and student activities funds. The District
is responsible for ensuring that those to whom the assets belong use them only
for there intended purposes and the assets reported in these funds. The District
excludes these activities from the government-wide financial statements because
it cannot use these assets to finance its operations.

Financial Analysis of the District as a Whole

Total assets decreased $0.5 million. Cash and cash equivalents decreased $17.9 million. The
District’s receivables increased $1.0 million due to the growth in property taxes assessed versus
last year. The Districts Capital Assets Net of Accumulated Depreciation increased $17.2 million.
The District capitalized assets during the year of $42.1 million compared to depreciation of §5.2
million.

The District’s combined net assets increased by 7.38% over the previous year to $88.8 million.
Most of this change in the District’s financial position came from its governmenta) activities, the
net assets of which increased $5.8 million to $87.9 million.

The Colorado Amendment X to the State Constitution (Taxpayer Bill of Rights (TABORY))
requires the district to establish certain reserves. The increase is due to the amount needed for
reserves for the District’s Severance plan. Net assets reserved for other purposes increased due to
growth in the Land Reserve Fund balance. The Unrestricted Net Assets was increased overall,

mainly due to the increase in the General Fund’s fund balance.
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The net assets of the District’s business-type activities increased $218,461 to $872,888.

Table 1 provides a summary of the District’s net assets for 2009 compared to 2008:

Table 1
Condensed Statement of Net Assets
(In Millions)
Governmenta)l Business-Type Total Total Percentage
Activities Activities School District Change
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2008-2009

Assets
Current assets ) 80.080 hY 97516 $ 0710 $ 0690 S 80.790 $ 98.206 -17.73%
Non-current assets 171.933 155018 0.401 0.193 172334 155211 11.03%

Total Assets 252,013 252.534 1.1 0.883 253124 253417 -0.12%
Liabilities
Currenl Liabilines 25.037 25334 0.227 0219 25264 25553 -1.13%
Long-Tceim Liabilifies 139.06) 145033 0.011 0.009 139.072 145.142 -4.18%

Total Liabilities 164.098 170.467 0.238 0.228 164.336 170.695 -3.73%
Net Assets
Invested in Capital

net of related debt 50.272 47.022 0.401 0.193 50673 47213 7.32%
Resuwricted 20.345 19.710 0.069 0.065 20413 19.775 3.23%
Unrestricted (Deficir) 17.298 15.334 0.403 0.396 17.701 15.730 12.53%

Total Net Assets $ 87915 $  82.066 § 0873 § 04654 N 88.787 $ 82.720 7.33%
Table 2 shows the changes in net assets for fiscal year 2009 compared to 2008:
Table 2
Changes in Net Assets (In Millions)

Governmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities School District
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Reveaues
Program revenues

Charges for scrvices $ 1.520 $ 1.314 S 1 540 $ 2123 S 3460 3 3.437

Operating Grants & Coniributions 12.656 10.767 1.986 1.734 14.642 12 501
General revenues

Property t1axes 58.622 56 899 - - 58.622 56.899

State revenuye 62.255 59.874 - - 62.255 59.874

Other 1.186 5.389 - - 1186 5.389

Total Revenues 136.239 134.243 3.926 3.857 140.165 138.100
Expenses
Instruction 69.894 67.833 - - 69.894 67.835
Pupil & Instructional Services 19.475 19.143 - - 19.475 19143
Administration & Business 11.580 11.046 - - 11.580 11.046
Maintenance & Operations 13.799 11,122 - - 13.799 11.122
Transportation 4.153 4012 - - 4.153 4.012
Other 11.491 15.137 4.01) 4170 15.502 19.307

Total expenses 130.392 128.295 4.011 4.170 134.403 132.465
Transfers 0.303
Increase (decrease) in net assets $ 5.847 N 5.948 $ 0218 S (0313) N 5.762 $ 5.635
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State equalization and property taxes accounted for most of the District’s total revenue, with each
contributing 46 cents and 43 cents of every dollar raised respectively (Table 3). Another 9 percent
came from state and federal grants for specific programs and the remainder from fees charged for
services and other miscellaneous sources.

The District’s expenses (71 percent) are predominantly related to instructing, caring for (pupil
services) and transporting students (Table 4). The District’s administrative and business activities
accounted for 9 percent of total costs, while maintenance and other operations cost 20 percent.

Table 3
Sources of Revenues for Fiscal Year 2008-09
Slate revenue Other )
46% 1% Charges for services
1%
Openating Grants & Property taxes
Conimnbuligns 43%
‘ 9%
Table 4

Expenses for Fiscal Year 2008-09

Transportation

Maintenance &
Other %

Operations 9%
1% =

| Instruction
Administration 53%
Business

%

Pupil & Instructional
Services
15%
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Governmental Activities

The primary source of operating revenue for school districts comes from the School Finance Act
of 1994 (SFA). Under the SFA the District received $6,521 per funded student. In fiscal year
2008-09 the funded pupil count was 14,486. For the 2008-09 fiscal year the District continued to
be one of the lowest funded districts in the state. Funding for the SFA comes from property
taxes, specific ownership tax and state equalization. The District receives approximately 67
percent of this funding from state equalization while the remaining amounts come from property
taxes and specific ownership tax. State law allows school districts to obtain an additional 20
percent of SFA program funding from local property taxes. This is accomplished by successfully
passing a mill levy override ballot question.

In 1999 District voters approved a mill levy override with maximum annual revenue of $7.5
million in property taxes from annual mills Jevied not to exceed 8.5. The primary objectives of
the 1999 override are to provide additional support for; instructional staff to student ratios,
textbooks and library books, instructional supplies and materials, a variety of specific
instructional programs, technology replacements and support, and operating costs of Mountain
View High School.

Beginning in fiscal year 2007, annual revenues from this override are no longer sufficient to
cover the inflationary increases associated with the specific objectives of this override. The
Board of Education has chosen to allocate other ongoing general fund revenues to cover the
differences rather than cutting specific items from the objectives.

In 2006, the District voters approved an additional mill levy override. The 2006 override’s
primary objectives are to support instructional staff to student ratios, operating expense support
for 3 new elementary schools and additions or modifications to other existing facilities as
financed by the 2005 bond issue, educational improvements, technology upgrades, and additional
support staff.

This particular override allows for maximum annual revenue of $6,540,000 in property taxes with
annual mills levied not exceeding 4.15 in any year. For 2008-2009 the expected revenues from
this mill levy were just under $5.3 million. Conservative growth projections (3.5% per year) on
future District assessed valuations suggest this override will not reach its annual revenue
maximum until the 2015-2016 fiscal year. The initial years of the override are still expected to
generate reserves which will remain designated for use on the override’s primary objectives until
such time as inflation requires use of other ongoing resources to balance this fund’s budget on an
annual basis.

The statement of activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and
grants offsetting those services. Table 5 shows, for governmental activities, the total cost of
services and the net cost of services. That is, it identifies the cost of these services supported by
unrestricted state equalization and property taxes.
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Table 5

Governmental Activities

(In Millions)

Total Cost of Net Costof
Services Services
2009 2008 2009 2008
Instruction S 69.894 $ 67.835 $ 59.474 $ 59.002
Pupil & Insguctional Services 19.475 19.143 17.596 17.519
Admimstration & Business 11.580 11.046 11.314 10.816
Maintenance & Operations 13.799 11.122 13.746 11.076
Transportation 4.153 4012 3224 3.209
Other 11.491 15.137 10.862 14.593
Total expenses $ 130392 3 128.295 $ 116216 $ 116.213

The cost of all governmential activities this year was $130.4 million.

e Some of the cost was financed by the users of the District’s programs ($1.5
million).

e The federal and state government subsidized certain programs with grants and
contributions ($12.7 million).

¢ Most of the District’s costs ($116.2 million), however, were financed by State
and District taxpayers.

e A portion of governmental activities was financed with $62.3 million in state
equalization from the School Finance Act of 1994 (SFA) and $54.3 million in
property taxes, ($30.2 million from the SFA, $12.8 from the 1999 and 2006 voter
approved mill levy overrides; and $11.3 million raised to repay the District’s
annual payment on Bonded debt.)

Business-Type Activities

Business-type activities of the district are limited to the nutritional services fund. This program
had revenues of $3.9 million and expenses of $4.0 million. While performance improved
significantly in 2008-09 versus 2007-08, management has continued its review of this program in
order to improve cost effectiveness further in 2009-10. Business-type activities receive no
support from tax revenue.

Financial Analysis of the District’s Funds

These funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. All governmental
funds have total revenues of $135.5 million and expenditures of $153.4 million. The general
funds’ fund balance increased by $0.8 miltion due to improved performance versus budget.
Revenue was lower than anticipated in two areas; equalization entitlements were weaker than
budget by $504,000 and investment earnings was lower by $462,000. Actual expenditures were
$7.2 million below budget. The building fund is spending the 2005 Bond proceeds; this causes
the total expenditures to be higher than total revenues.

1
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The District’s budget is prepared according to Colorado law and is based on accounting for
certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts and disbursements. The most significant budgeted
fund is the General Fund.

e Actual revenues were $0.7 million lower than expected. This is an insignificant
variance compared to the budgeted amount of $114.2 million.

e The actual expenditures were $7.2 million below budget. Schools and
departments are allowed to carryover certain unused dollars, which were
approximately $3.36 million at June 30, 2009. The 2008-09 budget reflects all
carryover from the previous year being spent, which was originally approximated
at $2.70 million.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

By the end of 2009, the District had invested $171.5 million in land, buildings, equipment, and
transportation vehicles, $171.1 million, of which was in governmental activities. Table 6 shows a
comparison of fiscal years 2009 and 2008:

Table 6
Capital Assets at June 30
(Net of Depreciation, in Millions)

Governmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities School District
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Land $ 14.81) k) 14.811) $ - $ - S 14.811 $ 14811
Water Rights 1.050 1.050 - - 1.050 1.050
Construction in Progress 44.897 44 459 - - 44.897 44.459
Buildings 104.559 88.706 - - 104.559 88.706
Equipment 2.198 1.865 0.401 0.192 2.599 2.057
Transportation 3.632 3.240 - - 3.632 3240
Totals $ 171147 $ 154131 $§ 0401 5 0.192 $ 171.548 $ 154323

Construction in Progress remained flat as a result of the additions to Berthoud High School and
Mountain View High School, the full renovation of Ferguson High School being completed.
Along with the in-process projects of the new Transportation facility, the Early Childhood Center
at Monroe Elementary, the Van Buren Special Education building and the new Ponderosa
Elementary School.

12
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Additional information on the District’s capital assets can be found in Note 6 of the Notes to
Financial Statements report, page 37.

Long-Term Debt

At year-end, the District had $140.7 million in bonds, certificates of participation and capital
leases payable, $6.2 million due within one year (Table 7).

Table 7

Outstanding Debt, at Year End

(In Millions)

Governmental Governmental

Activities Activities
2009 2008
General Obligation Bonds $ 135.763 $ 140.947
Certificates of Participation 3.635 3.815
Capital Lease Obligation Payable 1.258 1.436
Total 3 140.656 $ 146.198

Additional information on the District’s long-term debt can be found in Notes 8 through 1] of this

report.

Factors Bearing on the District’s Future

At the time these financial statements were prepared and audited, the District was aware of the
following existing circumstances that could significantly affect its financial health in the future:

With a significant economic downturn across the state and across the nation, the
state budget for Colorado has suffered tremendously. Despite federal efforts to
stimulate the economy and provide supplementary one-time funds to states to
help offset revenue decreases a portion of K-12 funding in 2008-09 ($355K) was
rescinded by the state. [t appears very likely another $1.9 million of Thompson
funding will be rescinded in 2009-10, and early indications are 2010-11 funding
will be reduced by more than 6%. K-12 budgets across the state will be under
pressure unseen in recent times. While the District has done well to build its
General Fund reserves in recent years significant expenditure reductions from
current levels will nevertheless be required for the near term future.

In November 2000 the voters of the State of Colorado passed a statewide
referendum, Amendment 23. This amendment establishes a school funding
reserve from state surplus dollars. This reserve will help fund the School Finance
Act whose funding, by this amendment has been guaranteed for the next 10 years
to equal inflation plus one percent. In addition, the State must also increase
categorical funding by inflation plus one percent for the next ten years.
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Contacting the District’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide the District’s citizens, taxpayers, parents, investors
and creditors with a general overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s
accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need
additional financial information, contact the Financial Services Office, Thompson School District
R2-J, 800 South Taft Ave., Loveland, Colorado 80537.
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ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and lnvestments
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables
Prepaid Expense
Due from Other Governments
inventory

Total Current Asscts

Noncurrent Assets
Bond 1ssuance Cosls, (net of Accumulated Amontization)
Capital Assets
(net of Accumulated Depreciation - where applicable):
Land
Water Rights
Construction in Progress
Buildings
Equipment
Transponation

Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable
Payroll Withholding Payable
Accrued Salaries and Benefits
Relainage Payable
Accrued Interest Payable
Due to Other Governments
Unearned Reveaue
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt

Total Corrent Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities
Loan Payable
Bonds Payable
Loss on Reissuance Cost
Premiuin on Bond Financing
Deferred Interest Bonds Payable
Certificates of Participation
Capital Lease Obligations
Compensated Absences
Early Retirement Stipends

Total Noncurrent Liabilitics
Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, net of Related Debt
Restricted for:
Debt Service
TABOR
Repairs and Replacements
Land and Land linprovements
Grants
Insurance
Colorado Preschool Program
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

The accompanying noles are an integral part of this statement

Thompson School District R2-J
Statement of Net Assets
As of June 30, 2009

Primary
Government

Governmental Business-Type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
3 74,328,582 $ 364,311 74,692,893 1,704,612
- - - 499,230
4,191,252 - 4.191.252 11,777
- - - 585,000
1,560,057 179,951 1,740,008 -
- 166,050 166,050 -
80,079.891 710,312 80,790,203 2,800.619
786,238 - 786,238 175,735
14,810,666 14,810,666 -
1,030,000 - 1.050,000 -
44,897,780 - 44,897,780 -
104,558,550 - 104,558,550 3,595,791
2,197910 400,578 2,598,488 -
3.632.011 - 3,632,011 -
171,933,135 400,578 172,333,733 3,771,526
252,013,046 1,110,850 253,123,936 6,572,145
3.358.760 33,478 3,392,238 32,963
12,050,346 117,618 12,167,964 97.289
422,535 - 422,335 -
232,886 - 232,886 81,466
171,396 - 171,396 -
- 71290 71,290 -
8.801,175 4,500 8,805,675 10,000
25,037,098 226,886 25.263,984 221,718
- - - 4,800,000
116,969,737 - 116,969,737 -
(1,617.141) - (1.617.141) -
5.185.933 - 5,185,933 -
9365070 - 9.365,070 -
3.450.000 - 3,450,000
1,071301 - 1,071,301 -
215,243 11,116 226,359 -
4,421,224 - 4.42),224 -
139,061,367 11,116 139.072,483 4,800,000
164,098,465 238,002 164,336,467 5,021,718
50,272,273 400.578 50,672,851 (1,214,209)
13,485,081 - 13,485,081 475878
4,632,786 69,152 4,701,938 90,600
- - - 23,352
919,604 - 919,604 -
893,239 - 893,239 -
253,190 - 251,190 -
162,813 - 162.813 -
17.297.596 403,158 17,700,754 2,174,806
s 87,914,582 Ay 872,888 88.787.470 1,550,427
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Program Revenues

Operating
Charges for Grants and
Expenses Service Contributiony
Primary Government
Total Instruction 69,893 811 827,452 9,592,020
Support Services
Pupil Services 8,823,141 - 1,302,397
Instructional Staff 10,651,345 45,904 529.833
General Administration 1,097 462 - -
School Administration 8,196,106 63,338 178,167
Business Services 2,286,161 24,719 -
Maintenance/Operations 13,799,484 - 53,553
Pupil Transportation 4,153,388 - 929,819
Central Supporting Services 3,979,589 558,519 -
Community Services 831.718 - 70,582
Interest on Long-term Debl 6,679,897 - -
Total Support Services 60,498,290 692,480 3,064,351
Total Governmental Activities 130,392,101 1,519,932 12,656,37)
Business-Type Activities
Nutritional Services 4,011,436 1,939,873 1,985,614
Total Business-Type Activities 4,011,436 1,939,873 1,985,614
Total Schood District 134,403,537 3,459,805 14,641,985
Component Units
Charter School 3,004,515 57,200 65,481
Thompson Education Foundation 514 45) - 386,758
3 3,518,966 3 57,200 S 452,239

General Revenues
Property taxes levied for:
Gengeral Purposes
Mill Levy Override
Deb( Services
Specific Ownership Taxes levied for:
General Purposes
Equalization Entitlement
Payment in Lieu of Land Dedication
Interest and Investment Earnings
Grants and Contributions not
Restricted 10 Specific Programs
Miscellaneous
Transfer

Total General Revenues and Transfers

Changes in Net Assets
Net Assels - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement



Net (Expenses) Revenucs
And Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Business-Type Compenent
Activities Activities Total Units

(59.474,339) (59,474,339) -
(7,520,744) (7,520,744) -

(10.075,608) {10,075.608) -
(1,097,462) - (1,097,462) -
(7.954,601) - (7,954,601) -
(2,261,442) (2.261,442)

(13,745,931) (13,745.931) -
(3,223,569) - (3,223,569) -
(3,421,070) - (3.421,070) -

(761,136) (761.136) -
(6,679,897) - (6,679,897) -
(56,741,459) - (56,741,459) .
(116,215,798) - (116,2)5.798) -
- (85,949) (85,949)
(85,949) (85.949) -
(116,215,798) (85.949) (116,301,747)
- - (2,881,834)
. - (127.693)
- (3,009,527)

30,242,965 - 30,242.965 -
12,774,017 - 12,774,017 -
11,265,715 - 11,265,715
4,339,660 - 4,339.660 -
62,255,043 - 62,255,043 -

313,552 - 313,532 -
1,175,751 1,584 1,177.335 (11.538)
- - 256,522
. - 2,703,297
(302,826) 302,826 -

122,063,877 304,410 122,368,287 2,948,281
5,848,079 218,46) 6,066,540 (61,246)
82,066,503 654,427 82,720,929 1,611.673
87.914,582 $ 872,388 $ 88,787,470 b 1,550,427
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ASSETS

Cash and Investments
Receivables

Due from Other Governments

Total Assets
LTIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries and Benefits
Due to Other Government
Deferred Revenue
Relainage Payable

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances

Reserved for TABOR

Reserved for Debt Services

Reserved for Capital Projects

Reserved for Other Purposes

Unreserved, reported in:
Designated General Fund (mill levy)
Undesignated General Fund
Undesignated Special revenue (unds

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

$

Thompson School District R2-J
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2009

Government
Designated- Bond
Geuneral Purpose Grants Redemption Buildipg
34,831,595 554,743 $ 12,455,165 21,262,526
3,494,361 2,389 693,780 -
- 1.560,057 - -
38,325,956 2,117,189 $ 13,148,945 21,262,526
954,172 102,244 $ - 1,858,896
11,068,503 910,566 - -
- 171,396 - -
2,186,786 - 683,722 -
- - - 408,213
14,209,461 1,184,206 683,722 2,267,109
4,407,886 39,744 - -
- - 12,465,223 -
- - - 18,995,417
414,003 893,239 - -
13,818,444 - - -
5,476,162 - - -
24,116,493 932,983 12,465,223 18,995,417
38,325,956 2,117,189 h) 13,148,945 21,262,526

The accompanying notes are au integral pan of this statement



Other Total
Governmental Governmental
Fuonds Funds
5,224,553 74,328,582
722 4,191,252
- 1,560,057
5225275 80,079,891
443 448 3,358,760
71,277 12,050,346
- 171,396
- 2,870,508
14,322 422,535
529,047 18,873,543
185,156 4,632,786
336,136 12,801,359
- 18,995,417
919,604 2,226,846
- 13,818,444
- 5,476,162
3,255,332 3,255,332
4,696,228 61,206,346
5,225.275 80,079,891

Thompson School District R2-J
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
With the Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2009
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net assets are different because:
Total Fund Balance - Governmental Funds $ 61,206,346
Capital assels used in governmental activities are not financial
resources & therefore are not reported as assets in governmental funds.
The cost of capital assels is 246,738,599
Accurnulated depreciation is (75,591,682)
171,146,917
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current
period expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds 2.870,508
Long-term liabihties, including bonds payable, are nor due and
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported
as liabilities in the funds. Long-term liabilities at year end
in the funds. Long-term liabilities at year end consist of:
Accrued Interest Payable 232,886
Bonds Payable 122,829,737
Bond Issuance Costs (786,238)
Loss on Reissuance Cost (1,617.141)
Premium on Bond Financing 5,185,933
Deferred Interest 9,365,070
Capital Lease Obligations 1,257,700
Certificates of Participation 3,635,000
Compensated Absences 495,243
Early Retirement Stipends 6,711,000
(147,309,150)
Total Net Assels - Governmental Activities $ 87,914,582



Revenue
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Investment eamnings
Other

TOTAL REVENUE

Expenditures
Curent
[nstruction
Salaries and Benefils
Qurchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Equipment
Other Expenditures
Total Instruction
Support Services

Pupil Services
Instructional Staff
General Administration
School Administration
Business Services
Maintenance/Operations
Pupil Transportation
Central Supporting Services
Community Services

Capital Projects

Charter School

Debt Service - Principal

Debt Service - Interest
Total Support Services

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over/(Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In
Transters Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Nei Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning of the Year

Fund Balances - End of the Year

Thompson School District R2-J
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Government
Designated- Bond
General Purpose Grants Redemption Building
$ 46,280,631 5 - 3 11,265,715 $ -
67,138.768 6.713,562 - -
86,667 3,095 155,017 883,711
- - - 1,000,000
113,506,066 6,776,657 11,420,732 1,883,71)
33,522,867 4,084,914 -
1,652,251 149,381 -
2,818.550 190,685 -
719,943 20,262 - -
81.649 11,334 - -
58,795,260 4,456,576 - -
6,735,444 1,795,835 - -
8,925,372 653311 -
719,144 - 336,615
7,280,676 533,975 - -
2,205,827 - - -
10,173,217 15,050 - 5975453
3,251,451 4,831 -
2,999478 - 449 -
8.703 117,435 -
- - - 14,778,636
2,722,161 - - -
- - 5,575,000 -
. - 5,706,844 -
45,021,472 3,120,437 11,282,293 21,090,704
103,816,732 7,577,013 11,282,293 21,090,704
9.689,334 (800,356) 138,439 (19,206,993)
- 667,423 - -
(8,899.260) - {155,000) -
(8.899,260) 667,423 (155,000) -
750,074 (132.933) (16,561) (19,206,993)
23,326,421 1,065,916 12,481,784 38,202,410
3 24,116,495 $ 932983 $ 12,465,223 $ 18,995,417

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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Other Total
Governmental Governmental
Funds Funds
- 57,546,346
- 73,912,330
47261 1,175,751
1,832,568 2,832,568
1,879,829 135,466,995
3,848.63) 61,456,412
28,778 1,830,410
286,158 3,295,393
495,547 1,235,752
35,784 128,767
4,694,898 67,946,734
1,397 8,532,676
848,127 10,426,810
. 1,055,759
112,891 7,927,542
37.880 2,243,707
1,161,345 17,325,065
804,085 4,060,367
754,662 1,754,589
647,779 773,917
- 14,778,636
- 2,722,161
338,065 5,933,065
247998 5,954,842
4,974,229 85,489,135
9,669,127 153,435,869
(7,789,298) (17.968.874)
8,718913 9,386,336
(332,076) ~(9,386.336)
8,386,837 0
597.539 (17.968,874)
4,098.689 79,175,220
4,696,228 61,206,346

Thompson School District R2-J
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances with the Statement of Activities
For The Year Ended June 30, 2009

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities are different because:

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds $

Capital outlays to purchase or build capital assets are reported in governmental funds

as expenditures. However, for governmental activities those costs are shown in the

statement of net assets and allocated over their estimated uscful lives as annual

depreciation expense in the statement of activities. This »s the amount by which

depreciation exceeds capital outlays in the period
(5.108,793)
22,124,875

Depreciation expense
Capital Outlays

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are nol reported as revenues in the funds.

In the statement of activities, cerlain operating expenses - compensated absences
(vacations) and special termination benefits (early retirement) - are measured by

the amounts earned during the year In the governmental funds, however, expenditures
for these items are measured by the amount of financial resources used (essentially,
the amounts actually paid). This year, special termination benefits paid ($2,574,519)
were more than the amounts carned (32,114,991) by $459.528. Vacarion used
($741,956) was more than the amounts camed ($684,634) by $57,322.

Repayment of banded principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but it
reduces long-tenm labilities in the statement of net assets and does not affect the
statement of activities. Repayment of bond Principal $5,575,000,

deferred interest on 1996 Bonds ($714,891), Bong lssuance Costs, net of amortization
$(100,864), amortization of Premium and Loss on refunding of $323,586 and change in
accrued interest payable. ($232,886).

Repayment of Capital Lease and Certificate of Participation principal is an
expenditure in the governmental funds, but it reduces long-term liabilities in the
statement of net assets and does not affect the statement of activities

Principal Payment of Debt

Change in nel assets of govemmental aclivities $
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(17,968.874)

17,016,082

1,076,011

516,850

4,849,945

358,065

5,848,079



ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Investments
Due from Other Governments
Inventory
Tolal current assets
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated
Depreciation

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries and Benefits
Deferred Revenue
Current portion of Compensated Absences

Total Current Liabihties

Noncurrent Liabilities
Compensated Absences

Total Noncurrent Liabilitics
Total Liabilities
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets
Restricted for TABOR

Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement

Thompson School District R2-J
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Fund
June 30, 2009
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Nutrition Services

Fund

364,311
179,951
166,050

710,312

400,578

1110,890

33478
117.618
71,290
4,500

226,886

1,116

1,116

238,002

400,578
69,152
403,158

872,888




Operating Revenue
Food Sales and Catering Sales

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE
Operating Expenses

Salaries and Benefits

Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials

Depreciation

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

Operating Loss

Non-Operating Revenue
Federal Aid:
USDA Reimbursements
Donated Commadities
Stale Categorical Reimbursement
Interest Earmings

TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUE
Net Loss Before Capital Contributions
Capital Confributions
Change in Net Assets

Net Assets
Beginning of the Year

Net Assets
End of the Year

Thompson School District R2-J
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Fund
For The Year Ended June 30, 2009

The accompanying noles are an integra} part of this statement
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Nutrition Services
Fund

1,939,873

1,939,873

1.867,848
85,681
1,963,002
94,905

4,011,436

(2,071,563)

1,692,599
231,842
60,773
1,584

1,087,198

(84,365)

302,826

218,461

654,427

872,888




Thompson School District R2-J
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund
For The Year Ended June 30, 2009

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash Received from Customers
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and
Services
Cash Payments to Employees for Services

Net Cash Used by Operating
Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing
Activities
Cash Received from Federal Government
Cash Received from State

Net Cash Provided by Non-capital Financing
Activities

Cash Flows from Investing
Activities

Interest Received

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash
Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning
of the Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents al the End

of the Year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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Nutrition Services
Fund

1,948,615

(1,795.799)
(1,870,401)

(1,717,585)

1,679,488
59,635

1,739,123

1,584

23,122

341,189

364,311




Thompson School District R2-J
Reconciliation of Operating Loss To
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Nutrition Services

Fuond
Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash
Used by Operating Activities
Operating Loss $ (2.071,563)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss (o Net
Cash Used by Operating Activities:
Depreciation 94,905
USDA Commodities Food Used 231,842
Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 3.347
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Salaries (4.301)
Decrease (Increase) in Inventory 17,695
Increase (Decrease) in Compensated
Alisences 1,948
Increase (Decrease) in Delerred Revenue 8,742
Net Cash Used by Operaling Activities 3 (1,717,585)
Non-cash Investing, Capital and Financing
Activities
Federal Aid
Donated Comimodities 3 231,842
Capital Assets Contribuied by Other Funds 302,826
534,668
Total Non-cash Investing, Capital and Financing
Activities $ 534,668

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement

25



Thompson School District R2-J
Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities
As of June 30, 2009

Agency
Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 970,038
TOTAL ASSETS 970,038
LIABILITIES
Liabilities
Accounts Payable 50,020
Accrued Salarjes and Benefits 2,508
Undistributed Monies 917,510
TOTAL LIABILITIES ) 970,038

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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Thompson School District R2-J
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

NOTE (1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of Thompson School District R2-J (District) have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (US
GAAP) as applied to government units, The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
1s the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
principles. The District also applies Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) statements
and interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989, to its business-type activities and to
its enterprise funds provided they do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The
more significant of the District’s accounting policies are described below.

(A) Reporting Entity

In conformance with Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, Thompson
School District R2-J, Larimer County, Loveland, Colorado, is the reporting entity for financial
reporting purposes. The District is the primary government financially accountable for all
activities of public school instruction within the geographical area organized as Thompson School
District R2-J. The District meets the criterta of a primary government: its Board of Education is
the publicly elected goveming body; it is a legally separate entity; and it is fiscally independent.
The District 1s not included in any other governmental reporting entity.

The financial statements of the District include all funds that are controlled by or dependent upon
the Board of Education. Control by or dependence on the Board of Education is determined on
the basis of budget adoption, taxing authority, outstanding debt that may be secured by general
obligation of the District, and the responsibility of the District to finance debt or make subsidies
to funds.

Blended Component Unit:
Thompson School Facilities Corporation

The Thompson School Facilities Corporation (Corporation), a Colorado not-for-profit
corporation, is included as a blended component unit in the accompanying basic financial
statements. The Corporation was formed by the District solely for the purpose of acting as lessor,
with the District as lessee, to finance the acquisition and/or construction of certain facilities used
in District operations. The Corporation does not publish individual component unit financial
statements.

Discrete Component Unpits:

The District includes the New Vision Charter School and Thompson Education Foundation,
which is a nonprofit entity, (the “Entities™) within its reporting entity because the Entities are
fiscally dependent on the District or provide benefits exclusively to the District and their
exclusion would render the District’s financial statements incomplete. Since the Entities have
separately elected boards, the balances and transactions of the Entities are discretely presented in
the financial statements. New Vision Charter School issues separate Financial Statements, which
can be obtained at the school, 2366 E. 1*' Street, Loveland, CO 80537.
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Thompson School District R2-J
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

(B) Fund Accounting

The District uses funds to report its financial position and results of operations. Fund accounting
is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating
transactions related to certain government functions or activities. A fund is a separate accounting
entity with a self-balancing set of accounts.

Funds are classified into three categories: govermmental, proprietary and fiduciary. Each
category, in tum, is divided into separate “fund types.”

Govemmental funds are used to account for all or most of a government’s general activities,
including the collection and disbursement of earmarked funds (special revenue funds), and the
servicing of general long-term debt (debt service funds). The following are the District’s major
governmental funds:

General Fund — The General Fund is the District’s general operating fund and is used to account
for all financial transactions except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Major
revenue sources include local property taxes, specific ownership taxes, and State of Colorado
equalization funding, as determined by the School Finance Act of 1994, as amended.

Expenditures include all costs associated with the daily operation of the schools, except for
programs funded by grants from federal and state governments, school construction, certain
capital outlay expenditures, debt service, food service operations, extracurricular athletic and
other pupil activities, payment of severance incentives and insurance transactions.

Government Designated-Purpose Grants Fund — This fund maintains a separate accounting for
programs funded by federal, state and local grants that normally have a different fiscal period
than that of the District.

Bond Redemption Fund — The District has one debt service fund, the Bond Redemption Fund.
This fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general
long-term debt principal, interest and related costs. The fund’s primary revenue source is Jocal
property taxes levied specifically for debt service.

Building Fund — The District has one capital projects fund, the Building Fund. This fund
accounts for the financial resources to be used to construct, renovate and equip capital facilities.

The other governmental funds of the District are Special Revenue Funds — These funds account
for revenues derived from earmarked revenue sources, including transfers from the General Fund,
charges for supporting educational services and tuition. Special Revenue Funds consist of Capital
Reserve, Land Reserve, Severance Incentive, Interscholastic Athletic and Activity, and Fee
Supported Program Funds.

Proprietary Funds focus on the determination of the changes in net assets, financial position and
cash flows and are classified as either enterprise or internal service.

Enterprise Funds may be used to account for any activity for which a fee 1s charged to external
users for goods or services. The District’s only enterprise fund is:
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Thompson School District R2-J
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

Nutritional Services Fund — This fund accounts for the financial transactions related to the food
service operations of the District.

Fiduciary Funds — Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net assets and changes in net assets.
Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal habilities) and do not involve measurement of
results of operations. The District has two agency funds, The Education Memorial Fund and
Interscholastic Athletic and Activity Fund.

©) Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements — The statement of net assets and the statement of
activities display information about the District as a whole. These statements include the
financial activities of the primary government except for fiduciary funds. Interfund services
provided and used are not eliminated in the process of consolidation. The statements distinguish
between those activities of the District that are governmental and those that are considered
business-type activities.

The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. This is the same approach used in the preparation of the
proprietary fund financial statements but differs from the manner in which governmental fund
financial statements are prepared. Governmental fund financial statements therefore include
reconciliation with a brief explanation to better identify the relationship between the government-
wide statements and the statements for governmental funds.

The government-wide statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for each segment of the business-type activities of the District and for each
function or program of the District’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with a service, program or department and therefore clearly identifiable to
a particular function. Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or
services offered by the program and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues, which are not classified as
program revenues, are presented as general revenues of the Distnct, with certain limited
exceptions. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to
which each business segments or governmental function is self-financing or draws from the
general revenues of the District.

Fund Fipancial Statements — Fund financial statements report detailed information about the
District. The focus of governmental and enterprise fund financial statements is on major funds
rather than reporting funds by type. Each major fund is presented in a separate column.
Nonmajor funds are aggregated and presented in a single column. Fiduciary funds are reported
by fund type.

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its
measurement focus. All governmental fund types are accounted for using a flow of current
financial resources measurement focus. The financial statements for governmental funds are a
balance sheet, which generally includes only current assets and current liabilities, and a statement
of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances, which reports on the sources (i.e.,
revenues and other financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of
current financial resources.
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Thompson School District R2-J
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

All proprietary fund types are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus.
With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operations of these
funds are included on the statement of net assets. The statement of revenues, expenses and
changes in fund net assets presents increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in net
total assets. The statement of cash flows provides information about how the District finances
and meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary activities.

(D) Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and
reported on the financial statements. Govemment-wide financial statements are prepared using
the accrual basis of accounting. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Proprietary and fiduciary funds also use the accrual basis of accounting.

Revenues — Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions Revenues resulting from exchange
transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, are recorded on the
accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a modified accrual basis, revenues are recorded
in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available. Available means
that the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected
soon enough thereatter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the District,
available means expected to be received within sixty days of fiscal year-end.

Nonexchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving equal
value in return, include property taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On an accrual basis,
revenues from property taxes are recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. See
Note 3. State equalization monies are recognized as revenues during the period in which they are
appropriated. Revenues from grants, entitjements and donations are recognized in the fiscal year
in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing
requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to be used or the fiscal year
when use is first permitted, matching requirements, in which the district must provide local
resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which the
resources are provided to the District on a reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basis,
revenue from nonexchange transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.
Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both
measurable and available at fiscal year-end: property taxes collected within 60 days after year-
end, mnterest, tuition, grants and student fees.

Deferred Revenue Deferred revenues (modified accrual) arise when potential revenue does not
meet both the “measurable” and “available™ cnteria for recognition in the current period of the
fund financial statements. Deferred revenues also arise when the District receives resources
before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant moneys are received prior to meeting eligibility
requirements (modified and full accrual). In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition
criteria are met, or when the District has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for deferred
revenue is removed and revenue is recognized.
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Thompson School District R2-J
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

Expenses/Expenditures On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time
they are incurred. The fair value of donated commodities used during the year is reported in the
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net assets as an expense with a like amount
reported as donated commodities revenue.

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial
resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recognized in the
accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable. Allocations of
cost, such as depreciation and amortization, are not recognized in governmental funds.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s prnincipal ongoing operations. Operating
expenses for enterprise funds include cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported
as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

(E) Cash, Cash Equivalents and Temporary Investments

Cash, cash equivalents, and temporary investments include cash on hand, demand deposits,
certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, money market funds and participation in local
government investment pools. All cash equivalents have an original maturity date of less than
three mounths,

Cash balances from different funds are combined and invested to the extent possible in local
government investment pools and repurchase agreements. Eamings from investments are
allocated to each fund based upon that fund’s share of the investment. Investments are stated at
fair value. The District generally holds investments until maturity.

(F) Short-term Interfund Receivables/Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods
provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as intemal balances
on the government-wide statement of net assets and, classified as due from other funds or due to
other funds on the balance sheet.

(G) Inventories

Nutritional Services Fund purchased inventories are stated at cost as determined by the first-in,
first-out (FIFO) method. Commodity inventories are stated at the USDA’s assigned values,
which approximate fair market value, at the date of receipt. Expenses for food items are recorded
when used. The federal government donates surplus commodities to supplement the National
School Lunch Program. Commodity contributions used by the District are recorded as non-
operating revenues at the date of their consumption.
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Thompson School District R2-J
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

(H) Capital Assets

General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the
proprictary funds. These assets generally result from expenditures in the governmental funds.
These assets are reported in the governmental activities column of the govermment-wide
statement of net assets but are not reported in the fund financial statements. Capital assets
utilized by the proprietary funds are reported both in the business-type activities column of the
government-wide statement of net assets and in the respective fund financial statements.

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions
and retirements during the year. Donated capital assets are recorded at their fair market values as

of the date received. The District maintains a capitalization threshold of five thousand dollars.
The District does not possess any infrastructure. Improvements are capitalized; the cost of
normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend and
asset’s life are not.

All reported capital assets are depreciated. Improvements are depreciated over the remaining
useful lives of the related capital assets. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method
over the following useful lives:

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities
Description Estimated Lives Estimated Lives
Land Improvements 20 Years N/A
Buildings and Improvements 10-50 Year N/A
Fumiture and Equipment 5-20 Years 5-20 Years
Vehicles 8-15 years 8-15 years

(I) Compensated Absences and Severance Incentive Benefit Amouats

Vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned if the employees’ rights to
receive compensation are attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that the
District will compensate the employees for the benefits through paid time off or payment at
separation of employment. The District records a liability for accumulated unused vacation time
when earned for all employees with more than one year of service. District policy allows
employees to accumulate only unused vacation earned since the beginning of the current school
year. For employees classified as administrators, twenty days of vacation may be carried over
from year to year with the approval of the Superintendent of Schools.

Upon separation, all certified employees are entitled to unused sick leave at the substitute teacher
daily rate. Unused sick leave is exchanged at the rate of one-half day for every day eamed up to
120 days beyond the 30 accrued days, acquired prior to the end of the 1993 fiscal year. However,
under the severance bonus plan, adopted in fiscal year 1993, teachers could choose a severance
plan that would allow payment for all sick leave earned at one-half the substitute teacher datly
rate up to a combined total of 120 days. For classified staff, unused sick leave is exchanged at the
rate of one-half day for every day eamed up to 120 days beyond the 30 accrued days, acquired
prior to the end of the 1994 fiscal year.
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The entire compensated absence liability is reported on the government-wide financial
statements. In proprietary funds, the entire amount of compensated absences is reported as a fund
liability. A liability is reported in the governmental funds only when payment is due.

During fiscal year 1993, the District initiated a severance bonus plan. Certified, classified and
administrative personnel could choose from a number of options and payment plans when
terminating from the District. Currently payments under the severance plan are scheduled
through fiscal year 20]5. The severance plan is structured to comply with the legal requirements
of Title X of the Colorado Constitution (also known as the Tabor Amendment). The District
budgets the subsequent year’s available resources for severance, severance incentive and eligible
accumulated Jeave benefits. Therefore, the entire unpaid liability for early retirement and sick
leave paid upon retirement for governmental funds is reported on the government-wide financial
statements. Amounts for sick leave to be paid with the severance and early retirement bonus are
included in severance incentive stipends payable. The compensated absences balance is the
accrual for active employees. The amounts recorded as liabilities for all compensated absences
include salary-refated payments associated with the payment of compensated absences, using the
rates in effect at the balance sheet date.

(J) Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables accrued liabilities and Jong-term obligations are reported in the government-wide
financial statements, and all payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations payable from
proprietary funds are reported on the proprietary fund financial statements.

In general, payables and accrued liabilities that will be paid from governmental funds are reported
on the governmental fund financial statements regardless of whether they will be liquidated with
available resources. However, claims and judgments, the noncurrent portion of capital leases,
compensated absences, and special termination benefits that will be paid from governmental
funds are reported as a liability in the fund financial statements only to the extent that they will be
paid with available financial resources. In general, payments made within sixty days after year-
end are considered to have been made with available financial resources. Bonds and other long-
term obligations that will be paid from governmental funds are not recognized as a liability in the
fund financial statements until due,

(K) Fund Balance Reserves

The District reserves those portions of fund balance which are legally segregated for a specific
future use or which do not represent available resources and therefore are not available for
appropriation or expenditure. Unreserved fund balance indicates that portion of fund balance,
which is available for appropriation in future periods. Designated unreserved fund balances have
been established for the mill levy override election.

(L) Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital
assets, net of related debt consist of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by
the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement
of those assets. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are liabilities imposed on their
use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the District or through external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.
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The District applies restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for purposes for which
both restricted and unrestricted net assets are avaitable.

(M) Interfund Transactions

Interfund services provided and used are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses.
Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made
from it that are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the
reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed. All
other interfund transactions are reported as interfund transfers,

NOTE (2) Cash and Investments
(A) Deposits

The Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act (PDPA) requires that all units of local government
deposit cash in eligible public depositories. Eligibility is determined by State regulations. At
June 30, 2009 the State regulatory commissioners had indicated that all financial institutions
bolding deposits for the District are eligible public depositories. Amounts on deposit in excess of
federal insurance levels must be collateralized by eligible collateral as determined by the PDPA.
PDPA allows the financial institution to create a single collateral pool for all public funds held.
The pool is to be maintained by another institution, or held in trust for all the uninsured public
deposits as a group. The market value of the collateral must be at least equal to 102% of the
uninsured deposits. At June 30, 2009, the District had deposits of $6,261,038 collateralized with
securities held by the financial institutions’ agents, but not in the District’s name.

®B) Investments

The District is required to comply with State statutes, which specify investment instruments
meeting defined rating, maturity, custodial and concentration nsk criteria in which local
governments may invest, which include the following.

e Obligations of the United States and certain U.S. Agency Securities

e (Certain international agency securities

e General obligation and revenue bonds of U.S. local government entities

» Bankers’ acceptances of certain banks.

e Commercial paper

e Local government investment pools

e Written repurchase agreements collateralized by certain authorized secunties
¢ Certain money market funds

e Guaranteed investment contracts

Interest rate risk — The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing
interest rates. State statute limits investments in U.S. Agency securities and repurchase
agreements to five years from date of purchase.
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Credit Risk — State statutes limit investments in U.S. Agency securities to the highest rating
issued by two or more nationally recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSROs). State
statutes limit investments in money market funds to those that maintain a constant share price,
with a maximum remaining maturity in accordance with Rule 2a-7, and either have assets of one
billion dollars or the highest rating issued by a NRSRO. State statutes require repurchase
agreements to be collateralized at no less than one hundred two percent with U.S. Treasury or
Agency securities.

Custodial Risk — State statues require the collateral securities of repurchase agreements to be held
by the District’s custodian or a third-party trustee.

Local government investment pools — At June 30, 2009, the District had $71,216,427 invested in
the Colorado Local Government Liquid Asset Trust (Colotrust). The pool is an investment
vehicle established for local govemment entities in Colorado to pool surplus funds. The State
Securities Commissioner administers and enforces the requirements of creating and operating the
pool. The pool operates similarly to a money market fund with each share equal in value to
$1.00. The pool is rated AAAm by Standard and Poor’s. Investments of the pool are limited to
those allowed by State statutes. A designated custodial bank provides safekeeping and depository
services in connection with the direct investment and withdrawal functions. The custodian’s
internal records identify the investments owned by the participating governments.

Investrent Manmities (In Years) Thorrpson All
Invesrent Type Rating Less than | 1-3 3+ Ed Fnd Qther Furxds Fair Value
Univesed Funds NA § 23 -3 -5 B3 -3 93
Money Market Funds AAA 7633 - - - 7.633 7633
Money Market Funcks NA 280,82 - - 280,822 - 280,82
Local Government Investrent Pool——— AAA 71216427 - - - 71216427 71216427
Corporate Bonds NA - 77,844 100,503 178 347 - 178,347
Conmrercial Paper AAA 336,136 - - - 336,136 336,136
US. Agency Securities AAA - - 269,641 269,641 - 269,641

$  71RLNI S TI84 S 370144 § T893 § 7156019 § 72289099

The Thompson Education Foundation 1s a non profit entity with its own investment policy and is
not subject to state statute.

The following table is a reconciliation of cash and investments on the statement of net assets.

Cash and Deposits $ 4279234

Investments 72,289,099
Total $ 76,568,333

Statement of Net Assets:

Primary Government Cash and Investments $ 74,692,893

Thompson Education Foundation Cash and Investments 905,402

Fiduciary Funds Cash and Investments 970.038
Total $ 76,568,333
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NOTE (3) Receivables

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on January 1, are certified on December 15 and are
levied the following January 1. They are payable in full by April 30 or are due in two equal
nstallments on February 28 and June 15. Larimer, Weld and Boulder Counties bill and collect
property taxes for all taxing entities within each county. The property tax receipts collected by
the counties are remitted to the District in the subsequent month.

NOTE (4) Due To/From Other Funds
The District’s claim on cash account holds the cash of all funds. As a result, negative claim on
cash balances occur in certain funds and are in essence “financed” by other funds. Positive book

cash balances are displayed on the balance sheet as “due from other funds”, while negative cash
balances are included in “Due to other funds’™ on the balance sheet.

NOTE (5) Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers at June 30, 2009, were composed of the following:

Transfer In Trapsfer Qut Amount
Major Funds:

Government. Designated-Purpose Grants General § 667,423
Sub-total 667,423

Non-Major Funds:
Interscholastic Athletic & Activity General 1,390,461
Severance Incentive General 2,610,000
Fee Supported Programs General 326,526
Capital Reserve General 3,904,850
Building Corporation Debt Service Capital Reserve 332,076
Capital Reserve Bond Redemption 155.000
Sub-total 8,718,913
Total § 9386336

The General Fund routinely subsidizes programs of other funds. The General Fund is required by
State statute to transfer $298 per funded pupil to the Capital Reserve Fund or use it for insurance
costs. The Capital Reserve Fund transferred to the Building Corporation Debt Service Fund the
amount of debt service requirements. By District policy and as allowed by State statute, the Debt
Service Fund transfers its investment income to the Capital Reserve Fund each year.
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NOTE (6) Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, was as fotlows:

Governmental Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Water Rights
Construction in Progress
Total capital assets, not
being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
Equipment
Transportation
Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Equipment
Transportation
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net
Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, Net

Business-Type Activities
Furniture and Equipment

Less Accumulated Depreciation

Business-Type Activities
Capital Assets, Net

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2009 was charged to the following governmental

functions:

Instruction

Support:
Pupil Services
Instructional Staff
General Administration
School Administration
Business Services
Maintenance/Operations
Pupil Transportation
Central Supporting Services
Community Services
Total

Deletions
Capital Inventory Capital
Assets Adjustments/ Assets
Julv 1, 2008 Additions Transfers June 30, 2009
S 14,810,666 $ - $ - $ 14,810,666
1,050,000 - - 1,050,000
44.459.350 20,207,841 (19769411 44,897,780
60,320,016 20,207,841 (19.769.411) 60.758.446
149,655,411 19,632,066 - 169,287,477
4.976,854 871,560 - 5,848,414
9,947,639 ),182.819 _(286.196) 10,844,262
164,579,904 21,686,445 (286,196) 185,980,153
(60,949,038) (3,779,889) - (64,728,927)
(3,112,400) (538,104) - (3.650,504)
(6.707.647) (790,800) 286,196 (7.212.251)
(70,769.085) (5.108,793) 286.196 (75,591.,682)
93.810.819 16,577,652 - 110,388,471
$154,130,835 $ 36,785,493 $ (19769411 $ 171,146,917
$ 2,516,971 $ 302,826 $ - $ 2,819,797
(2,.324.314) (94.905) - (2419.219)
$ 192,657 § 207921 $ - 3 400,578

§ 2,804,794

290,466
304,821
41,703
268,564
42,454
788,368
93,021
416,801

57.801

5,108,793
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NOTE (7) Accrued Salaries and Benefits

Salaries and benefits of certain contractually employed personnel are paid over a twelve-month
period from September to August, but are eamed during a school year of approximately ten
months. The salaries and benefits earned, but unpaid, at June 30, 2009, are estimated to be
$12,166,623. Accordingly, this accrued compensation is reflected as a liability in the
accompanying financial statements.

NOTE (8) General Obligation Bonds Payable

Table 1

On January 7, 1997, the District issued $48,949.738 in general obligation bonds. The bond
proceeds are being used for construction projects and bond issuance costs. The bond issue was
comprised of two separate types of bonds. These bonds have different interest rates and payment
due dates as shown in the tables below. The first and second tables identify each type of the 1996
bond issue. On July 29, 2003, the District issued $25,660,000 in general obligation bonds. The
bond proceeds were used to refund the Series 1996. The first table is the remaining principal and
interest due from the portion of the 1996 Series Bonds, which were not refunded. The second
table identifies the remaining principal and interest due on the 2003 bond i1ssue as of June 30,
2009. On September 17, 2004, the District issued $22,215,000 in general obligation bonds. The
bond proceeds were used to refund the Series 1994 bonds. Table 3 details the remaining principal
and interest due on the 2004 bond issue as of June 30, 2009. On December 20, 2005, the District
issued $89,215,000 in general obligation bonds. Table 4 details the remaining principal and
interest due on the 2005 bond issue as of June 30, 2009.

Series 1996 Deferred Interest

Interest

Rate 5.4% to 5.5%

Year ended June 30 Principal Interest Total
2011 $ 3,271,194 $ 3,603,806 $ 6,875,000
2012 3,101,430 3,823,570 6,925,000
2013 2912.113 _ 4,002,887 6,915,000
Totals $ 9,284,737 $11,430,263 20,715,0
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Table 2
Series 2003 A Refunding Bonds
Interest Rate 2.75% to 5.25%
Year Ended June 30, Principal Interest Total
2010 A 875,000 $ 892,050 § 1,767,050
2011 - 878,925 878,925
2012 - 878,925 878,925
2013 - 878,925 878,925
2014 4,315,000 779,269 5,094,269
2015 4,550,000 591,238 5,141,238
2016 4,760,000 383,862 5,143,862
2017 5.045.000 132.43] 5.177.431
Total $ 19545000 §$ 5,415,625  $24,960,625
Table 3
Series 2004A Refunding Bonds
Interest Rate 2.30% to 3.49%
Year Ended June 30, Principal Interest Total
2010 $ 4885.000 $ 122,125 $ 5.007.125

Total $ 4885000 § 122,125 § 5,007,125
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Series 2005 Bonds

Interest

June 30, 2009

Rate 4.00% to 5.00%

Year Ended June 30, Principal Interest Total
2010 $ 100,000 $ 4,425,600 § 4,525,600
2011 105,000 4,421,500 4,526,500
2012 105,000 4,417,300 4,522,300
2013 130,000 4,412,600 4,542 600
2014 1,205,000 4,385,900 5,590,900
2015 1,300,000 4,335,150 5,635,150
2016 1,445,000 4,272,375 5,717,375
2017 1,600,000 4,196,250 5,796,250
2018 7,090,000 3,979,000 11,069,000
2019 7,570,000 3,612,500 11,182,500
2020 8,065,000 3,221,625 11,286,625
2021 8,600,000 2,805,000 11,405,000
2022 9,160,000 2,361,000 11,521,000
2023 9,750,000 1,888,250 11,638,250
2024 10,340,000 1,386,000 11,726,000
2025 10,990,000 852,750 11,842,750
2026 11,560.000 289.000 11,849,000
Total $89,115,000  $55,261,800 $144,376,800

NOTE (9) Certificates of Participation

Certificates of Participation represent long-term lease purchase agreements for the acquisition of
capital items. Certificates of Participation (COP) are not considered bonded debt of the District
due to the structure of the lease and annual appropriation clause. The COPs are not considered to
be a general obligation or other indebtedness of the District within the meaning of any
constitutional or statutory debt limitations.

On April 22, 2004, the Thompson School Facilities Corporation issued $4,485,000 of COPs. The
2004 COPs were issued to purchase the Thompson Leaming Community, which houses the
District’s central administrative offices and a Community Leaming Center. The COPs carmry
interest rates ranging from 1.85% to 4.50%. Annual lease payments will be made from the
Capital Reserve Fund.

The table below identifies the remaining principal and interest due on the 2004 COP issue as of
June 30, 2009.
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Table 1
Series 2004 Certificates of Participation
Interest Rate 1.85% to 4.50%

Year ended June 30 Principal Interest Total
2010 $ 185,000 $ 146,370 $ 331,370
2011 190,000 140,039 330,039
2012 200,000 132,964 332,964
2013 200,000 125,714 325,714
2014 210,000 118,329 328,329
2015 220,000 109,906 329,906
2016 230,000 100,769 330,769
2017 235,000 91,351 326,351
2018 245,000 81,174 326,174
2019 255,000 70,460 325,460
2020 270,000 59,300 329,300
2021 280,000 47335 327,335
2022 290,000 34,650 324,650
2023 305,000 21,262 326,262
2024 320.000 7,200 327,200
Total 33,635,000 $1.286,823 $4,921,823

NOTE (10) Capital Leases

The District has the following capital lease, which is subject to annual appropriation:

Original Rematning Annual
Lease Principal Payment
Equipment Amount ~
1} Performance Contract $2233253 $_1.257.700 $ 245259

This lease with Sun Trust Leasing Corporation was entered into on September 15, 2002. Twelve
annual payments of $245,259 began on July 1, 2003. This lease is an energy performance
contract. The payments are guaranteed from annual energy savings by replacing equipment with
more energy cfficient units. This contract is guaranteed by Siemen Building Technologies.
Payments are made from the Capital Reserve Fund, based on a transfer from the General Fund
energy budget. No assets were capitalized, as items did not meet District’s capitalization policy.
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NOTE (11) Changes in Long-Term Debt
(A) Summary

The following is a summary of the changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2009:

Amount
Due in
July 1, 2008 Additions Deletions June 30, 2009 One Year
Governmental activities:
General Obligation Bond $140,947,294 $ 714891 $ 5.898,586 $135,763,599 S 5.860.000
Certificates of Participation 3,815,000 - 180,000 3.635.000 185.000
Capital Lease Obligations
Payable 1,435,765 - 178,065 1.257.700 186.399
Compensated Absences * 552,565 684.634 741956 495,243 280,000
Severance-Incentive
Payable* 7,170,528 2.114.991 2,574.519 6,711.000 2.289.776
Govemmental activities
Long-term liabilities $153.921.152 $ 3514516 $ 9,573,126 $147,862,542 S 8.801,175
Business-type activities:
Compensated Absences $ 13,668 $ 15,38} S 13.433 $ 15,616 S 4.500

* The General Fund liquidates compensated absences and the Severance Incentive Fund
liquidates the severance incentive stipend payable.

(B) Annual Requirements

Listed below are the annual requirements to amortize all long-term debt at June 30, 2009:

General Capital Severance
Year Ending Obligation LLease/COP Compensated Incentive
June 30, Bonds Obligations Absences Stipends Total

2010 $ 11,299,775 $ 576,629 \) - $ 2,289,776 $ 14,166,180
2011 12,280,425 575,298 - 1,623,188 14,478,911
2012 12,326,225 578,223 - 1,229,772 14,134,220
2013 12,336,525 570,973 - 826,151 13,733,649
2014 10,685,169 573,588 - 537153 11,795,910
2015-2019 54,862,806 1,883,920 - 204,960 56,951,686
2020-2024 57,576,875 1,634,748 - - 59,211,623
2025-2026 23,691,750 - - 23,691,750

Due in accordance

with District leave

policies - - 495,243 - 495 243
Less amounts

representing

interest (72,229.812) (1,500,679) -

(73,730,491)

Principal Due $122,829,737 $4,892,700 $ 495,243 $6,711,000 $134,928,681
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NOTE (12) Fund Balance
(A) Reserves/Designations

The District has reserved all or portions of the fund balance in several funds. The reserved fund
balance represents the portion not available for expenditures or legally segregated for specific
future use. Fund balances of $12,801,359 have been reserved for future debt service payments.
Other reserve balances are: Land Reserve Fund ($919,604), Government Designated Purpose
Grants Fund ($893,239), Insurance ($251,190) and the Colorado Preschool Program ($162,813).
Fund balance of $13,818,444 has been designated for future mill levy override projects.

NOTE (13) Defined Benefit Pension Plan
(A) Plan Description

The District contributes to the School Division Trust Fund (SDTF), a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Public Employees’ Retirement
Association of Colorado (PERA). SDTF provides retirement and disability, annual increases and
death benefits for members or their beneficiaries. All employees of the District are members of
the SDTF. Title 24, Article 51 of the Colorado Revised Statutes (CRS), as amended, assigns the
authority to establish benefit provisions to the State Legislature. PERA issues a publicly
available annual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for SDTF. That report may be obtained by writing to PERA of Colorado, 1300 Logan
Street, Denver, Colorado 80203 or by calling PERA at 303-832-9550 or 1-800-759-PERA
(7372).

(B) Funding Policy

Plan members and the District are required to contribute at a rate set by statute. The contribution
requirements of plan members and the District are established under Title 24, Article 51, Part 4 of
the CRS, as amended. The contribution rate for members was 8%. The District’s contribution
rate for calendar years 2007, 2008 and 2009 was 11.15%, 12.05% and 12.95% of covered
salaries, respectively. A portion of the District’s contribution (1.02% of covered salaries) is
allocated to the Health Care Trust Fund (See Note 14). The District’s contributions to SDTF for
the years ending June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007 were $9,398,654, $8,322,105 and $7,370,568,
respectively, equal to their required contributions for each year.

NOTE (14) Postemployment Healthcare Benefits
(A) Plan Description

The District contributes to the Health Care Trust Fund (HCTF), a cost-sharing multiple-employer
postemployment healthcare plan administered by the PERA. The HCTF provides a health care
premium subsidy to PERA participating benefit recipients and their eligible beneficiaries. Title
24, Article 51, Part 12 of the CRS, as amended, assigns the authority to establish the HCTF
benefit provisions to the State Legislature. PERA issues a publicly available annual financial
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the HCTF.
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That report may be obtained by writing to PERA of Colorado, 1300 Logan Street, Denver,
Colorado 80203 or by calling PERA at 303-832-9550 or 1-800-759-PERA (7372).

(B) Funding Policy

The District is required to contribute at a rate of 1.02% for fiscal year 2008-2009, of covered
salary for all PERA members as set by statute. No member contributions are required. The
contribution requirements for the District are established under Title 24, Article 51, Part 4 of the
CRS, as amended. The apportionment of the contribution to the HCTF is established under Title
24, Article 51, Section 208 of the CRS, as amended. The District’s contributions to HCTF for the
years ending June 30, 2009, 2008, 2007 were $766,240, $731,055, and $671,347 respectively,
equal to their required contributions for each year.

NOTE (15) Risk Management
(A) Colorado School District Self Insurance Pool

The District 1s exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District has
joined together with other districts to participate in the Colorado School Districts Self Insurance
Pool (CSDSIP), a public entity risk poo) currently operating as a common risk management and
insurance program for school districts. Participation in CSDSIP 1s approved by and managed
under regulations promulgated by the Colorado State Insurance Division of Regulatory Agencies.
The District pays an annual premium to CSDSIP for its general property and liability insurance
coverage. CSDSIP is self-sustaining through member premiums and currently carries reinsurance
for property claims in excess of $1,000,000 and for liability claims in excess of $500,000.

The Colorado Governmental Immunity Act limits the types of liability claims that can be brought
against a school district and the amount of monetary damages that a school district might be
ordered to pay. The maximum amount that can be recovered for an injury involving one person
in any single occurrence is $150,000. The maximum amount that is recoverable for a single
occurrence involving two or more people is $600,000.

The District’s contribution to CSDSIP is funded by premium contributions through a transfer
from the General Fund to the Capital Reserve Fund. The fund is also used to cover the purchase
of commercial insurance for workers’ compensation coverage and other types of coverage not
provided in the pool agreement; to partially fund salaries and other service costs for risk
management and loss control (deductibles, security contracts, medical evaluation, controlled
substance and alcohol testing, etc.). Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded
commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three years. Complete financial statements for

CSDSIP can be obtained from CSDSIP, 6857 South Spruce Street, Centennial, Colorado 80112.
(B) Centennial Board of Cooperative Educational Services (CBOCES)
The District participates in the Centennial Board of Cooperative Educational Services

(CBOCES), along with St. Vrain, Park and several smaller districts in Weld County. CBOCES
provides data processing services, teacher education, provides research and development for
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members districts. The District is not responsible for deficits nor is the District entitled to
operating surplus. The District has no moral or other responsibility for debt. The amount
contributed 1s based upon the number of students enrolled in each district. For the 2008-09 fiscal
year, the administrative, operations and contingency percentage the District contribution is
approximately 15%. Complete financial statements can be obtained from CBOCES, 830 S.
Lincoln, Longmont, Colorado 80501,

The District made an $811,674 contribution to CBOCES during fiscal year 2008-09.
(C) Larimer County Board of Cooperative Edncational Services (LCBOCES)

The District is also a member of the Larimer County Board of Cooperative Educational Services
(LCBOCES), along with Poudre R-1 and Park School Districts. At one time, LCBOCES
administered the Voc-Tech Center (Center) in Fort Collins, Colorado. The Center provides the
vocational training for District students. At the current time, the LCBOCES retains title to the
assets at the Voc-Tech Center, but has no day-to-day operations. On July 1, 1988, LCBOCES
and the three related school districts contracted with the State of Colorado for the operation and
management of the Center. Under these arrangements, the Center became a satellite campus of
Front Range Community College and the name was changed to Front Range Community
College/Larimer County Center. The District is not responsible for deficits, nor is the District
entitled to operating surplus. The District has no moral or other responsibility for debt. The
District’s share of original contribution was 35.44%. Poudre R-1’s original contribution share
was 64.56%, and Park School District made no original contribution. Complete financial
statements can be obtained from LCBOCES, 830 S. Lincoln, Longmont, Colorado 80501.

The District made a $5,052 contribution to LCBOCES duning fiscal year 2008-09.

NOTE (16) Commitments and Contingencies
(A) Litigation

The District is involved in several pending lawsuits. The District estimates that the potential
claims against it resulting from such litigation and not covered by insurance would not materially
affect the financial statements of the District.

(B) Granuts and State Funding

The Distnct participates in a number of Federal and State assisted grant programs. The
disbursement of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms
and conditions specified in the grant agreements and are subject to audit by the grantor agencies.
Any disallowed claims resulting from such audits could become a liability of the General Fund or
other applicable funds. However, in the opinion of management, any such disallowed claims will
not have a material affect on the financial statements of the District at June 30, 2009.
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(C) TABOR Amendment

Colorado voters passed an amendment to the State Constitution, Article X, Section 20, which has
several limitations, including revenue raising, spending abilities and otber specific requirements
of state and local governments. The Amendment is complex and subject to judicial interpretation.

In November 2000, voter approval was given to the District to remove the restriction on growth
in revenue effective beginning the fiscal year ended June 30, 2000. At June 30, 2009, the District
has complied with the requirements to establish emergency reserves that are recorded in the
financial statements as a reserved fund balance.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

These financial statements present more detailed information, such as budget to actual
comparisons for the individual funds in a format that segregates information by major fund type
and non-major funds.



GENERAL FUND

The General Fund accounts for all transactions of the District not required to be accounted for in
other funds. This fund represents an accounting for the District’s ordinary operations financed

primarily from property taxes and state aid. It is the most significant fund in relation to the
District’s overall operations.
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Revenue

Taxes
Local Property- School Finance Act
Local Property- Mill Levy Override
Specific Ownership

Intergovernmental
Equalization Entilleraents
Special Education
Vocational Education
Transportation
Other

Investment Earnings

TOTAL REVENUE

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess revenues over expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers Out:

Interscholastic Athletic & Activity Fund

Governmental Designated-Purpose
Grants Fund

Severance Incennive Fund

Fee Supported Programs Fund

Capital Reserve Fund

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

See independent auditor's report

Thompson School District R2-J
General Fund - 10
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Year Ended June 30, 2009

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
28,467,790 29,503,782 29,166,954 $ (336,828)
12,793,488 12,793,488 12,774,017 (19,471)

4,177,800 4,490,321 4,339,660 (150,661)
64,676,042 62,758,819 62,255,043 (503,776)
2,449,751 2,449,751 2,730,768 281,017

247,000 247,000 393,204 146,204
728,055 728.055 752,676 24,621
665,037 665,037 1,007,077 342,040
548,466 548,466 86,667 (461,799)
114,753,429 114,184,719 113,506,066 (678.,653)
109,935,107 110,989,701 103,816,732 7,172,969
4,818,322 3,195,018 9.689,334 6,494,316
(1,390.461) (1,390,461) (1.390.461) -
(667.423) (667,423) (667,423) -
(2,610,000) (2,610,000) (2,610,000) -
(447,826) (447,826) (326,526) 121,300
(3,770,942) (3,904,850) (3,904,850) -
(8.886,652) (9,020,560) (8,899.260) 121,300
(4,068,330) (5,825,542) 790,074 3 6,615,616
23,326,421
24,116,495
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Expenditures

Instruction:

Salanes and Benefits
Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Other

Total Instruction

Supportiog Services

Pupil Services

[nstructional Staff

General Administration
School Administration
Business Services
Maintenance/Operations
Pupil Transportation
Central Supporting Services
Community Services
Charter School

Total Supporting Services

Capital Oullay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

See independent auditor's report

Thompson School District R2-J

General Fund - 10

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
56,581,843 3 56,742.244 $3,522,867 3 3,219,377
1,827,728 1,827,728 1,652,251 175,477
4,579,965 4,506,018 2,818,550 1,687,468
90,095 90,095 81,649 8.446
63,079,631 63,166,085 58,075,317 5,090,768
5,331,970 5.361,597 6,735.444 (1,373.847)
10,233,643 10,747,335 8,925372 1,821,964
769,769 815,644 719,144 96,500
7,583,071 7,587,718 7,280,676 307,042
2,031,615 2,386,547 2,205,827 180,720
10,719,503 10,718,874 10,173,217 345,657
3,708.976 3,712,832 3,251,451 461,382
3,419,784 3,435,924 2.999,478 436,447
- - 8,703 (8.703)
2,697,368 2,697,368 2,722,161 (24.793)
46,495,699 47,463,839 45,021,472 2,442,369
359,776 359,776 719,943 (360,167)
105,935,107 3 110,989,701 103,816,732 3 7,172,969
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GOVERNMENT DESIGNATED-PURPOSE
FUND

The Government Designated-Purpose Fund maintains the accounting for programs funded by
federal, state and local grants that normally have a different fiscal period than that of the District.

50



Thompson School District
Government Desjgnated Purpose Grants Fund - 22 & 28
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenue
[ntergovernmental

Federal Sources $ 6,695.277 3 6.695,277 $ 6119280 § (575,997)

State/Local Sources 512,501 512.50) 654,282 141,781
Investment Earnings - - 3.095 3,095

TOTAL REVENUE 7,207,778 7,207.778 6.776,657 431,121)
Expenditures
[nstruction

Salaries and Benefits 6,937,078 5,944.519 4,084,914 1,859,605

Purchased Services 114,308 106,016 149,381 (43,365)

Supplies and Materials 183,191 152,752 190,685 (37,933)

Equipment 46,173 44,673 20,262 24,411

Other Expenditures 523,297 487,415 11,334 476,081

Total Instruction 7.804,047 6,735,375 4.456,576 2,278,799
Support Services

Pupil Services 575,704 575,704 1,795,835 (1,220,131)

Instructional Staff 378,788 378,788 653,3]1 (274,523)

School Administration - - 533,975 (533,975)

Maintenance/Opcrations - - 15,050 (15,050}

Pupil Transportation - - 4,831 4,831)

Commounity Services - - 117,435 (117,435)

Total Support Services 954,492 954,492 3,120,437 (2,165,945)
Total Expenditures 8,758,539 7,689,867 7,577,013 112,854
Excess Revenues Over/(Under)

Expenditures (1,550,761) (482,089) (800,336) (318,267)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Operating Transfer In 1,736,095 667,423 667,423 -
Net Change in Fund Balance h) 185,334 $ 185,334 (132,933 $ (318,267)
Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 1,065,916
Fund Balances - End of Year 3 932,983

See independent auditor's report
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Thompson School District R2-J
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
June 30, 2009

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The District adheres to the following procedures in compliance with Colorado Revised
Statutes, establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

1) Budgets are required by state law for afl funds. Prior to May 31, the
Superintendent of Schools submits to the Board of Education a proposed budget
for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The budget includes
proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

2) Public hearings are conducted by the Board of Education to obtain taxpayer
comments.

3) Prior to June 30, the budget is adopted by formal resolution.

4) Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the fund level.
Authorization to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any
fund and reallocation of budget line items within any department in the General
Fund rests with the Superintendent of Schools, or department directors.
Revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the
Board of Education.

5) Budgets for all funds are adopted on a basis consistent with US GAAP, with
the exception of the Nutritional Services. The Nutritional Services Fund
budgets for capita) outlay and not for depreciation expense.

6) Appropriations lapse at year-end.

7) No Budgetary information is presented for the Building Corporation Debt

Service Fund as this is presented as a component unit of the District and
there is no legal requirement to adopt a budget for this fund.
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES

These financial statements present more detailed information, such as budget to actual
comparisons for the individual funds in a format that segregates information by major fund type
and non-major funds.
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DEBT SERVICE FUND

The District has one debt service fund, the Bond Redemption Fund. This fund 1s used to account
for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, long-term debt principal, interest and

related costs. This fund’s primary revenue sources are local property taxes levied specifically for
debt service.
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Revenue
Local Property Taxes
Investment Eamnings
TOTAL REVENUE
Lxpenditures
Other Charges
Debt Service:
Principal retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess revenues aver (under) expenditures

Other Financing (Uses)
Transfer Out

Tortal Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Nef Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year
Fund Balance - End of Year

See independent auditor's report

Thontpson School District R2-J
Bond Redemption Fund - 31
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Actual Variance with
Amounts Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Budget Positive
Original Final Basis (Negative)
) 11,200,000 S 11,200,000 $ 11,265,715 65,715
350,000 350,000 155,017 (194,983)
11,550,000 11,550,000 11,420,732 (129,268)
5.000 5.000 449 4,551
5,575,000 5,575,000 5.575.000 -
5,706,844 5,706,844 5,706,844 -
11,286,844 11,286,844 11,282,293 4,551
263.156 263,156 138,439 (124,717)
(300,000) (300,000) (155,000) 145.000
(300,000) (300,000) (155,000) 145,000
$ (36.844) § (36,844) (16,561) 20,283
12,481,784

h) 12,465.223
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

The District has one capital projects fund, the Building Fund. This fund accounts for the financial
resources to be used to construct, renovate and equip capital facilities.
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Revenue

Investment Earnings $

Other

TOTAL REVENUES
Expenditures

Project Administration

New or Addition to Schools

Maintenance Projects

Technology Projects

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Net Change in Fund Balance $

Fund Balance - Beginning of the Year

Fund Balance - End of the Year

See independent auditor's report

Thompson School District R2-J

Building Fund - 41

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Actual Varjance with
Amounts Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Budget Positive
Original Final Basis (Negative)
1,820,000 5 1,820,000 ) 883,711 (936,289)
1,000,000 1.000,000
1,820,000 1,820,000 1.883.711 63.711
361,966 361,966 336,615 25,351
12,800,000 12,800,000 14,376,064 (1.576.064)
10.000,000 10,000.000 5.975.453 4,024,547
500,000 500,000 402,572 97,428
23,661,966 23,661,966 21,090,704 2,571,262
(21.841,966) § (21,841,966) (19.206.993) 2,634,973
38,202,410
3 18,995.417
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NON-MAJOR FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specified purposes.

The District has the following Non-major Funds:

Capital Reserve Fund

This fund is authorized by Colorado state law. Under state law, funds must be reported as a special revenue
fund type, not a capital projects fund type. It is used to fund ongoing capital needs such as site acquisitions,
building additions, equipment purchases and technology. Funding was provided by a property tax through
1988. Funding is now provided by a transfer from the General Fund, as mandated by the Public School
Finance Act of 1994.

Land Reserve Fund

This fund is provided to maintain a separate accounting for cash in lieu of land dedication assessed on
newly constructed homes that have an impact on the District’s financial resources. This revenue is to
provide facilities for learning due to the increased amount of student population.

Severance Incentive Fund
This fund pays benefits to District employees who elect to take advantage of the severance plan. Funding
is provided by a transfer from the General Fund.

Interscholastic Athietic and Activity Fund

This fund accounts for the coaches and sponsors of the interscholastic athletic programs and student
organizations at all secondary schools in the District. Funding is provided by transfers from the General
Fund.

Fee Supported Programs Fund
This fund is used to account for programs that are financed primarily through user fees and tuition.

Building Corporation Debt Service
Accounts for the transactions related to the debt service of the Building Corporation
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Thompson School District R2-J
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2009

Interscholastic

Capital Land Severance Athletic
Reserve Reserve Incentive & Activity
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2,408,288 $ 935,226 h) 182,795 64,905
Receivables - - - .
Total Assets L) 2,408,288 3 933,226 3 182,795 64,905
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 379,702 S 5,997 h) 3,793
Retainage Payable 14,322 - -
Accrued Salaries and Benefits - - - -
Total Liabilities 394,024 5.997 3,793
Fund Balances
Reserved for TABOR - 9,625 78.304 41,714
Reserved for Debt Service - - -
Reserved for Other Purposes - 919.604 - -
Unreserved, Reported in Special Revenue Funds 2,014,264 - 104,49) 19,398
Total Fund Balances 2,014,264 929,225 182,795 61.112
Totatl Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 2,408,288 $ 935,226 3 182,795 64,905

See independent auditor's report
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Fee Building Total Nonmajor
Suppaorted Corporation Governmental
Programs Debt Service Funds

1,297,203 336,136 5,224,553

722 - 722
1,297,925 336,136 5,225,275
53,956 443,448

- - 14,322
71,277 - 71,277
125,233 - 529,047
55,513 - 185,156

- 336,136 336,136

- - 919.604

1,117,179 - 3,255,332

1,172,692 336,136 4,696,228

1,297,925 336,136 5,225,275
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Revenue
Investment earnings
Other

TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Instruction
Salaries and Benefits
Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Equipment
Other Expenditures
Total Instruction
Support Services
Pupil Services
Instructional Staff
School Administration
Business Services
Maintenance/QOperations
Pupil Transportation
Central Supporting Services
Community Services
Debt Service - Principal
Debt Service - Interest
Tota! Support Services

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning of the Year

Fund Balances - End of the Year

See independent anditor's report

Thompson School District R2-J

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Interscholastic

Capital Land Severance Athietic
Reserve Reserve Incentive & Activity
$ 31,378 5 7.265 $ 126 -
3.586 313,582 -

34,964 320,817 126 -

- 2,143,262 1.327,694

5,157 - - 17.242

123 - - 4,509

440.814 - - 372

- - - 13.845

446.094 - 2.143.262 1,363,662
810,906 - - -

- - - 37,604
1.161.345 - - -
804,085 - - -
292,495 14,371 447,796 -
178.065 - - -
95,922 - - -

3,342,818 14,37) 447,796 37.604

3,788,912 14,371 2.591,058 1,401,266

(3,753,948) 306.446 (2,590,932) (1.401.266)

4,059,850 2.610.000 1,390,461
(332,076) - - R

3,727,774 - 2,610,000 1,390,461

(26.174) 306.446 19.068 (10.805)

2,040,438 622,783 163,727 71,917

s 2,014,264 3 929,229 $ 182,793 61,112
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Fee Building Total Nonmajor

Supported Corporation Governmental
Programs Debt Service Funds

8.492 $ - h) 47,261
1,515,430 - 1,832,568
1,523.922 - 1,879,829
377,676 - 3,848.631
6,379 - 28,778
281,526 - 286,158
54361 - 495.547
21,939 - 35,784
741,881 - 4,694,898
1,397 - 1,397
37221 - 848,127
75,287 - 112,891
37,880 - 37,880

- - 1,161,345

- - 804,085

- - 754,662
647.779 - 647.779

- 180,000 358,065

- 152,076 247,998
799,564 332,076 4,974,229
1,541,445 332.076 9,669,127
(17,523) (332,076) (7,789,298)
326,526 332,076 8,718,913
- - (332.076)
326,526 332,076 8,386,837
309.003 - 597,538
863,689 336.136 4,098,690

1,172,692 $ 336,136 h) 4,696,228




Revenue

Investment Earnings

Other

TOTAL REVENUE

Expenditures
Instruction

Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials

Equipment

Total lustruction

Support Services

Instructional Staff
Maintenance/Operations
Pupil Transportation
Central Supporting Services
Principal Payments

Interest Payments

Total Support Services
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
Excess revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfer In
Transfer Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Batance
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year
Fund Balance - End of Year

